
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person needing assistance to participate in this meeting, should contact the Office of the County Clerk at 
(920)746 2200. Notification 72 hours prior to a meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to that meeting. 

Posted _________, 2018     Initials:  ___________ 

 

AGENDA        

1.   Call Meeting to Order 

2.   Establish a Quorum ~ Roll Call 

3.   Adopt Agenda / Properly Noticed 

4.   Approve Minutes of January 9, 2018 Legislative Committee Meeting  

5.   Communications 

6.   Public Comment  

7.   Supervisor Response 

8.   Old Business 
A. United to Amend – Draft Resolution to County Board 
B. United to Amend – Consideration of County-Wide Referendum 
C. AG’s Opinion re: County Board Members Attendance at Meetings Which May Cause a Quorum 

9.   New Business 
A. Review Resolutions from Other Counties and Refer to Appropriate Committees for 

Recommendation as to Action of the County Board 
1. Town of Clay Banks - Supporting Constitutional Amendment to Limit Campaign Contributions 
2. Milwaukee – County Executive / County Administrator 
3. Adams County – Urging Creation of a Non-Partisan Procedure for the Preparation of Legislative 

and Congressional Redistricting Plans 
B. NOAA Marine Sanctuary 
C. Wetland Bill SB600 / AB547 
D. WCA Legislative Exchange Conference 

10.   Matters to be Placed on a Future Agenda or Referred to a Committee, Official, or Employee 

11.   Next Meeting Date: tbd 

12.   Meeting Per Diem Code 

13.   Adjourn  

 

 
Deviation from the order shown may occur 

 
 

Notice of Public Meeting 

Tuesday, February 13, 2018 

3:00 p.m. 

 
LEGISLATIVE 
COMMITTEE  

 

Door County Government Center 
Chambers Room (C102), 1st floor 

421 Nebraska Street, Sturgeon Bay, WI 

 

1 of 92



 

 
Call Meeting to Order 
Chair Susan Kohout called the January 9, 2018 meeting of the Legislative Committee to order at 3:00 p.m. at the 
Door County Government Center. 
 
Establish a Quorum – Roll Call 
Committee members present – Susan Kohout, Roy Englebert, Helen Bacon, and Steve 
Sohns.  David Enigl was excused. 

Others present – Administrator Ken Pabich, CC Grant Thomas, County Clerk Jill Lau, 
Clerk of Court Connie DeFere, United to Amend Dan Powers, and Media. 
 
Adopt Agenda / Properly Noticed 
Motion by Bacon, seconded by Englebert to approve the agenda.  Motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote.  
 
Approve Minutes of October 17, 2017 Legislative Committee Meeting  
Motion by Sohns, seconded by Bacon to approve the minutes of October 17, 2017 meeting.  Motion carried by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
Communications 
No communications were presented. 
 
Public Comment  
No one from the public commented. 
 
Supervisor Response 
N/A. 
 
Old Business 
United to Amend – Consideration of County-Wide Referendum 
Dan Powers, United to Amend Rep, presented information regarding the most recent municipalities who have 
adopted resolutions.  Fourteen of the nineteen Door County municipalities have now adopted resolutions.  The 
Town of Sevastopol and Town of Washington have declined to place the matter on an agenda.  Nine counties 
have passed this; six by resolution and three by referendum.  Two counties have the question on the April 
ballot.  Powers asked the committee to consider bringing a resolution forward to County Board to hold a 
referendum in November 2018. 
 
CC Thomas explained there are no statutory requirements for the county to hold a referendum vote.  
Discussion regarding if a referendum or a resolution is a more powerful message to legislators.  A referendum 
question is supposed to be opinion neutral.  In the past the county has hired outside counsel to draft a question 
that is neutral.  Discussion of the steps needed to get to the end result.  Dan explained the mid goal is to have 
the state hold a statewide referendum with the end goal of amending the US Constitution.  A resolution may be 
more appropriate and may be able to move through Wisconsin Counties Association for lobbying.  The 
question was asked how the County intended to educate the public in advance of a referendum vote.  
Discussion on what is the better route to take for this to succeed and discussion of next steps. 
 
Motion by Englebert, seconded by Sohns to draft a resolution asking for a statewide referendum to support a 
constitutional amendment to the U.S. Constitution and pass on to County Board.  CC Thomas will work on 
drafting the resolution and research what other counties have done and bring the draft to the next Legislative 
Committee meeting for review prior to sending to County Board.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
 

MINUTES 
Tuesday, January 9, 2018 

 
LEGISLATIVE 
COMMITTEE  

 

Door County Government Center 
Peninsula Room (C121), 1st floor 

421 Nebraska Street, Sturgeon Bay, WI 

 

"These minutes 
have not been 
reviewed by the 

oversight committee 
and are subject to 

approval at the next 
regular committee 

meeting." 

2 of 92



 

 
WCA Big Box Legislative Update 
Chair Kohout explained this legislation has died and it is not expected to come back next session. 
 
New Business 
Review Resolutions from Other Counties and Refer to Appropriate Committees for Recommendation 
as to Action of the County Board 
Portage County – Opposition to 2017 SB 54 & 2017 AB 94 
Village of Sister Bay – Opposition to the Back Forty Mine 
Trempealeau County – Opposition to Section 7 of SB387 & AB479 
Outagamie County – Nurse Licensure  
Outagamie County – Mining 
Town of Brussels, Town of Nasewaupee- Supporting Constitutional Amendment to Limit Campaign 
Contributions 
Ashland County – Resolution Opposing the Passage of SB 54 & AB 94 
All resolutions were reviewed.  No further action taken. 
 
AG’s Opinion re: County Board Members Attendance at Meetings Which May Cause a Quorum 
Supervisor Sohns requested this agenda item.  There needs to be discussion on how to solve this dilemma.  
CC Thomas noted WCA tapped Attorney Andy Phillips for ideas.  Thomas will research and report back.  Chair 
Kohout suggested asking our State Legislators to possibly pressure the Attorney General for a new opinion or 
to possibly sponsor legislation to fix the problem. 
 
Discussion on State Debt Collection through Clerk of Courts 
Clerk of Court Connie DeFere explained this topic came about when she requested a change in collection 
agents through the Administrative Committee.  DeFere noted Door County has approximately $2M in 
outstanding fines.  Supervisor Virlee suggested the Legislative Committee work with state legislators to draft 
legislation that suspends licenses such as drivers licenses and DNR licenses for failure of payment of fines.  
DeFere explained that courts can already suspend DL’s for one year for outstanding fines.  Administrator 
Pabich suggested letting this sit for one year before any course of action is taken to determine how the new 
collection agency is working.  There are a lot of tools to use in collections already.  No further action was taken. 
 
WCA Legislative Exchange Conference 
Supervisor Sohns and Enigl will be attending. 
 
Matters to be Placed on a Future Agenda or Referred to a Committee, Official, or Employee 
Nothing new as of this meeting. 
 
Next Meeting Date: tbd 
February 13, 2018 – 3:00 p.m. 
 
Meeting Per Diem Code 
530. 
 
Adjourn 
Motion by Englebert, seconded by Sohns to adjourn.  Time 4:16 p.m.  Motion carried by voice vote. 
 
Respectfully submitted by Jill M. Lau, County Clerk 

 
 

 
 
 

3 of 92



 

ROLL CALL 
Board Members 

Aye Nay Exc. 

AUSTAD    

BACON    

D. ENGLEBERT    

R. ENGLEBERT     

ENIGL    

FISHER    

GUNNLAUGSSON    

HALSTEAD    

KOCH    

KOHOUT    

LIENAU    

LUNDAHL    

MOELLER    

NEINAS    

ROBILLARD    

SCHULTZ    

SITTE    

SOHNS    

VIRLEE    

VLIES WOTACHEK    

WAIT    

 
   

    

BOARD ACTION 

Vote Required: Majority Vote of a Quorum  

 
 

Motion to Approve Adopted   

 

1st  Defeated   

2nd    

Yes:   No:   Exc:   

 
 

 Reviewed by: 

 , Corp. Counsel 

 Reviewed by: 

 , Administrator 

 FISCAL IMPACT:  

 
Certification: 

I, Jill M. Lau , Clerk of Door County, hereby certify 
that the above is a true and correct copy of a 
resolution that was adopted on the  27th  day 
of   February   , 2018 by the Door County Board 
of Supervisors. 
 
 

 
Jill M. Lau  
County Clerk, Door County  

  

Resolution No. 2018-___ 

SUPPORTING A CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT TO ALLOW LIMITS ON 
CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTIONS 

 
 

TO THE DOOR COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 

 WHEREAS, Free and fair elections are essential to democracy and effective self-governance; 1 
and 2 
 3 
 WHEREAS, The appearance of buying access to candidates or influencing policy, governance, 4 
and judicial decisions because of large outsider donations erodes voter confidence in our elections 5 
and democracy; and 6 
 7 
 WHEREAS, The County of Door has an interest in protecting itself and its citizens against 8 
intrusions on local control by mitigating the influence of money and privileged access in state and 9 
federal government and elections; and 10 

 11 
 WHEREAS, The U.S. Supreme Court’s decisions in Citizens United (2010) and related cases 12 
allow unlimited spending by certain groups known as Super-PACs to influence local, state, and 13 
federal elections; and 14 
 15 
 WHEREAS, To date, 74% of Door County municipalities (14/19) have called upon the Door 16 
County Board of Supervisors to support their Resolutions Supporting a Constitutional Amendment 17 
to Allow Limits on Campaign Contributions. 18 
 19 
 WHEREAS, The goal is to add an amendment to the Constitution, thereby overturning multiple 20 
Supreme Court cases, which have made it impossible to achieve campaign finance goals through 21 
simple legislation, and 22 
 23 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Door County Board of Supervisors 24 
supports amending the United States Constitution to provide that corporations are not 25 
entitled to the entirety of protections or “rights” of human beings, specifically so that the 26 
expenditure of corporate money to influence the electoral process is no longer a form of 27 
constitutionally protected speech, and calls on Congress to begin the process of amending 28 
the Constitution.  We further call upon the State of Wisconsin Legislature to ratify such 29 
amendment.   30 

 31 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the County Clerk is directed to forward a copy of this resolution 32 
to all U.S. Congressmen and Senators from the State of Wisconsin, as well as the State Legislators.  33 

 
SUBMITTED BY:  LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

Susan Kohout, Chairman  David Enigl 

Helen Bacon  Steve Sohns 

Roy Englebert   

 

4 of 92



 

ROLL CALL 
Board Members 

Aye Nay Exc. 

AUSTAD    

BACON    

D. ENGLEBERT    

R. ENGLEBERT     

ENIGL    

FISHER    

GUNNLAUGSSON    

HALSTEAD    

KOCH    

KOHOUT    

LIENAU    

LUNDAHL    

MOELLER    

NEINAS    

ROBILLARD    

SCHULTZ    

SITTE    

SOHNS    

VIRLEE    

VLIES WOTACHEK    

WAIT    

 
   

    

BOARD ACTION 

Vote Required: Majority Vote of a Quorum  

 
 

Motion to Approve Adopted   

 

1st  Defeated   

2nd    

Yes:   No:   Exc:   

 
 

 Reviewed by: 

 , Corp. Counsel 

 Reviewed by: 

 , Administrator 

 FISCAL IMPACT:  

 
Certification: 

I, Jill M. Lau , Clerk of Door County, hereby certify 
that the above is a true and correct copy of a 
resolution that was adopted on the  27th  day 
of   February   , 2018 by the Door County Board 
of Supervisors. 
 
 

 
Jill M. Lau  
County Clerk, Door County  

  

Resolution No. 2018-___ 

SUPPORTING A CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT TO ALLOW LIMITS ON 
CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTIONS 

AND 
CONDUCTING A NON-BINDING STATEWIDE REFERENDUM 

 
TO THE DOOR COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 

 WHEREAS, Free and fair elections are essential to democracy and effective self-governance; 1 
and 2 
 3 
 WHEREAS, The appearance of buying access to candidates or influencing policy, governance, 4 
and judicial decisions because of large outsider donations erodes voter confidence in our elections 5 
and democracy; and 6 
 7 
 WHEREAS, The County of Door has an interest in protecting itself and its citizens against 8 
intrusions on local control by mitigating the influence of money and privileged access in state and 9 
federal government and elections; and 10 
 11 
 WHEREAS, The U.S. Supreme Court’s decisions in Citizens United and related cases allow 12 
unlimited spending by certain groups known as Super-PACs to influence local, state, and federal 13 
elections; and 14 

 15 
 WHEREAS, The above mentioned Supreme Court cases:  16 

 have granted Corporations, Unions, non-profits, and other man-made entities (such as 17 

Super-PACs) the same Constitutional protections given only to individual human beings 18 

by the Framers of the Constitution, and; 19 

 have declared money to be ‘free speech’ 20 

 21 
 WHEREAS, To date, 74% of Door County municipalities (14/19) have called upon the Door 22 
County Board of Supervisors to support their Resolutions Supporting a Constitutional Amendment 23 
to Allow Limits on Campaign Contributions and Conducting a Non-Binding Statewide Referendum. 24 

 25 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Door County Board of Supervisors (joining 26 
with the 119 Wisconsin communities to date, including 9 other counties) calls upon our elected 27 
State Assembly Representative and State Senator and on the Wisconsin State Legislature to 28 
hold a non-binding state-wide Referendum asking the voters if they wish the State of 29 
Wisconsin to support an Amendment to the United States Constitution stating: 30 

 31 

1. Only human beings are endowed with individual constitutional rights –not corporations, 32 

unions, non-profits or artificial entities (such as SuperPACs)  33 

 34 

2. Money is not speech, and therefore limiting political contributions and spending is not 35 

equivalent to limiting political speech.  36 

 37 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That following the Door County referendum, the County Clerk is 38 
directed to forward a copy of this resolution to our state and federal representatives, including the 39 
members of any state committees in which such a referendum or bill resides, with instructions to 40 
enact resolutions, referenda, and legislation to advance this effort.  41 

 
SUBMITTED BY:  LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

Susan Kohout, Chairman  David Enigl 

Helen Bacon  Steve Sohns 

Roy Englebert   

 

5 of 92



6 of 92



7 of 92



8 of 92



9 of 92



10 of 92



11 of 92



12 of 92



13 of 92



14 of 92



15 of 92



16 of 92



17 of 92



18 of 92



19 of 92



20 of 92



21 of 92



22 of 92



23 of 92



24 of 92



25 of 92



26 of 92



27 of 92



28 of 92



29 of 92



30 of 92



31 of 92



32 of 92



33 of 92



34 of 92



35 of 92



36 of 92



37 of 92



38 of 92



39 of 92



40 of 92



41 of 92



42 of 92



43 of 92



44 of 92



45 of 92



46 of 92



47 of 92



48 of 92



49 of 92



50 of 92



51 of 92



52 of 92



53 of 92



54 of 92



55 of 92



56 of 92



57 of 92



58 of 92



59 of 92



60 of 92



61 of 92



62 of 92



63 of 92



64 of 92



65 of 92



66 of 92



67 of 92



68 of 92



69 of 92



70 of 92



71 of 92



72 of 92



73 of 92



74 of 92



75 of 92



76 of 92



Proposed Lake Michigan marine sanctuary sparks fears 
of federal overreach

Alisa M. Schafer and McLean Bennett, HTR News Published 7:02 a.m. CT Jan. 31, 2018 | Updated 6:49 p.m. CT Feb. 5, 2018

SHEBOYGAN - When he tried rousing a small audience last year against a proposed Wisconsin-Lake Michigan 

National Marine Sanctuary, Jim Zeiler turned to a familiar reference.

“What are those nine words that Reagan warned us about? Somebody blurt it out,” Zeiler said from inside the 

Sheboygan County GOP headquarters building.

On cue, a few audience members offered: “I’m from the government and I’m here to help.”

That was last July, when Zeiler, president of the Hudson-based Citizens for Responsible Zoning and 

Landowner Rights, headlined a listening session aimed at highlighting his and other opponents’ concerns about 

the proposed sanctuary.

Much of the lobbying against the sanctuary is rooted in the fear the federal government will dip more of its toes in the Great Lakes — threatening 

Wisconsin’s sovereignty.

Sanctuary supporters describe those concerns as outlandish. And leaders of a Michigan community report that no such federal power grab has 

materialized in the 17 years since a marine sanctuary was established on Lake Huron.

The National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, or NOAA, has outlined plans to create a sanctuary that would cover about 1,075 square miles of 

Lake Michigan and protect 37 shipwrecks and 80 unexplored potential shipwrecks and other cultural resources off the coasts of Manitowoc, Sheboygan 

and Ozaukee counties.

An alternative plan would extend the sanctuary to waters off Kewaunee County, expanding the potential sanctuary territory to 1,260 square miles and 

protecting 38 shipwrecks and 95 unexplored potential shipwrecks. 

NOAA’s preferred alternative for a Wisconsin-Lake Michigan National Marine Sanctuary encompasses 1,075 square miles, 37 shipwrecks and 80 potential 

shipwrecks. (Photo: Courtesy of The National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration)

(Photo: McLean Bennett/USA 

TODAY NETWORK-Wisconsin)

Buy Photo

1 Month Freest

SUBSCRIBE TODAY

(HTTP://OFFERS.GREENBAYPRESSGAZETTE.COM/SPECIALOFFER?

GPS-

SOURCE=BENBFEB&UTM_MEDIUM=NANOBAR&UTM_SOURCE=BOUNCE-

EXCHANGE&UTM_CAMPAIGN=WELOVE2018)

Page 1 of 9Lake Michigan National Marine Sanctuary proposal sparks outcry

2/8/2018http://www.greenbaypressgazette.com/story/news/2018/01/31/trump-executive-order-noaa-wisconsin-lak...

77 of 92







Sheboygan area has long 
maritime history

Fullscreen

NOAA’s second alternative for a Wisconsin-Lake Michigan National Marine Sanctuary encompasses 1,260 square miles, 38 shipwrecks and 95 potential 

shipwrecks. (Photo: Courtesy of The National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration)

Although opponents question the figure, supporters say a Wisconsin-Lake Michigan marine sanctuary could create up to $10 million in annual income for 

the three counties, based on the assumption 70,000 tourists will show up to the sanctuary each year.

Many local governments that would be part of the sanctuary have passed resolutions or letters of support for the sanctuary, including the Manitowoc 

County Board and the Manitowoc and Two Rivers city councils.

Plans for the sanctuary began after Wisconsin Gov. Scott Walker in 2014 asked the federal government to consider a sanctuary off the Lake Michigan 

coast to bolster existing efforts by the state to protect shipwrecks.

Meant to preserve more than three dozen of those wrecks — some of them placed on the National Register of Historic Places — the proposal has 

produced mixed reactions along the lakeshore.

An executive order signed by President Donald Trump last April, aimed at opening more places for offshore drilling, has also complicated the process.

READ MORE: USA TODAY NETWORK-Wisconsin's coverage of the proposed Wisconsin-Lake Michigan National Marine Sanctuary (/search/marine%

20sanctuary/)

Judith Perlman of Cleveland, Wisconsin, sits at her picture window with her dog Natalya. Perlman is not in favor of the proposed Wisconsin-Lake Michigan National 

Buy Photo

1 Month Freest

SUBSCRIBE TODAY

(HTTP://OFFERS.GREENBAYPRESSGAZETTE.COM/SPECIALOFFER?

GPS-

SOURCE=BENBFEB&UTM_MEDIUM=NANOBAR&UTM_SOURCE=BOUNCE-

EXCHANGE&UTM_CAMPAIGN=WELOVE2018)

Page 2 of 9Lake Michigan National Marine Sanctuary proposal sparks outcry

2/8/2018http://www.greenbaypressgazette.com/story/news/2018/01/31/trump-executive-order-noaa-wisconsin-lak...

78 of 92



Marine Sanctuary. (Photo: Gary C. Klein/USA TODAY NETWORK-Wisconsin)

Judith Perlman, a retired attorney who has lived in Cleveland, Wisconsin, for 23 years, worries about what the sanctuary could mean for her back yard.

The land outside her back door spills abruptly into Lake Michigan, giving her exclusive access to a 100-foot stretch of shoreline — a coveted bit of real 

estate that comes with its own set of unique property rights.

If NOAA has its way, she said, the sanctuary could end up overlapping land she sometimes controls. And proposed sanctuary rules that she called “very 

vague” have her concerned the government would end up tying her hands when it comes to removing bits of debris that often wash ashore.

“I can’t clean my beach without violating federal law,” Perlman said.

The Arctic Shipwreck, in the vicinity of Manitowoc in Lake Michigan. (Photo: Courtesy of Wisconsin Historical Society)

The concern — shared by a few of her neighbors — stems from plans to plant the federal sanctuary along what’s known as Lake Michigan’s “ordinary 

high-water mark.”

Lakeside, or “riparian,” landowners’ property runs up to that mark. The state owns the land on the other side. That means that when water levels are low, 

as is often the case, private landowners’ yards spill over into state-owned territory.

In those cases, property owners must get permits from the state to do certain things on land that’s technically not theirs. But they retain exclusive control 

of it all the way to the water’s edge and can even keep trespassers from wading out of the lake.

To keep the federal agency’s sanctuary from overlapping beaches outside their homes, some sanctuary opponents have tried insisting the boundary 

simply align with the shoreline, wherever it happens to fall. But NOAA has said water levels fluctuate too much, and as a result could leave sanctuary-

protected resources “within or beyond the sanctuary boundary depending on lake levels at a given time.”

“Because the sanctuary won’t change ownership of state bottomlands, this area would not become federal land,” Russ Green, the NOAA official who’s 

been leading agency efforts to designate the sanctuary, said recently.

He explained that means "all of those riparian rights are intact."

Perlman isn't convinced. That’s because, she said, the sanctuary would protect more than just shipwrecks. Proposed regulations she’s read suggest the 

federal government would also stamp protections within the sanctuary on vaguely defined “sanctuary resources.”

“Stuff that formerly looked like garbage,” she said, “is now, quote, ‘a sanctuary resource.’”

1 Month Freest

SUBSCRIBE TODAY

(HTTP://OFFERS.GREENBAYPRESSGAZETTE.COM/SPECIALOFFER?

GPS-

SOURCE=BENBFEB&UTM_MEDIUM=NANOBAR&UTM_SOURCE=BOUNCE-

EXCHANGE&UTM_CAMPAIGN=WELOVE2018)

Page 3 of 9Lake Michigan National Marine Sanctuary proposal sparks outcry

2/8/2018http://www.greenbaypressgazette.com/story/news/2018/01/31/trump-executive-order-noaa-wisconsin-lak...

79 of 92



The LaSalle shipwreck, pictured, in the vicinity of Two Rivers, has been named to the National Register of Historic Places. (Photo: Courtesy of Wisconsin Historical Society)

Green said the proposal isn't meant to regulate beach-combing, although he said his agency could take steps to allay those sorts of concerns by crafting 

more precise language in its sanctuary rulebooks.

“A ‘sanctuary resource,’” he said, “means all prehistoric, historic, archaeological and cultural sites and artifacts within the sanctuary boundary, including 

but not limited to shipwrecks and related components.

“I think that’s where people see the definition as really expansive. And maybe there’s some things we can do to tailor that definition to make it clear that 

we’re only talking about historical and archaeological materials.”

Overreach fears stoke outcry

When Zeiler spoke in Sheboygan, he warned his group Wisconsin was poised to “give away” control of its fresh water — not to mention its beaches and 

lake bottom — to the federal government.

“NOAA is feverishly working to create Sanctuaries in all the Great Lakes and along both oceans (sic) coasts,” one of his organization’s 

brochures declared.

Most of NOAA’s existing 13 national marine sanctuaries run along the country’s east and west coasts. The federal agency has for nearly two decades 

operated a sanctuary in Lake Huron and is considering others in Lake Ontario and Lake Erie. NOAA’s website indicates no efforts underway to designate 

a sanctuary in Lake Superior, although the idea has been discussed.

“A reasonable person might question the goals and intents as concealing a quest for added jurisdiction and power,” Zeiler’s brochure concluded.

NOAA has balked at those claims.

“The proposal recognizes the state’s sovereignty over its waters and submerged lands,” the agency said in a statement on its website.

Green added: “The state doesn’t give up any of its rights to any of the resources it has in this sanctuary proposal. ... It creates a co-management 

arrangement between the state and NOAA to manage historic resources in the sanctuary.”

In its online statement, the agency notes it would also set up a “sanctuary advisory council” comprising members of the public that would hold open 

meetings “to gather input and advice on sanctuary management.”

“Additionally, NOAA, in collaboration with the state, would conduct regular sanctuary management plan reviews, 

during which time the public” would have “the opportunity to provide input,” the agency said in its online 

statement.

1 Month Freest

SUBSCRIBE TODAY

(HTTP://OFFERS.GREENBAYPRESSGAZETTE.COM/SPECIALOFFER?

GPS-

SOURCE=BENBFEB&UTM_MEDIUM=NANOBAR&UTM_SOURCE=BOUNCE-

EXCHANGE&UTM_CAMPAIGN=WELOVE2018)

Page 4 of 9Lake Michigan National Marine Sanctuary proposal sparks outcry

2/8/2018http://www.greenbaypressgazette.com/story/news/2018/01/31/trump-executive-order-noaa-wisconsin-lak...

80 of 92



(Photo: GWM)

Terry Katsma (Photo: Photo 

courtesy Terry Katsma)

The town of Holland, which borders Lake Michigan in Sheboygan County, approved a resolution earlier this year 

opposing the sanctuary. In a statement following local town board members’ unanimous vote in January, the 

State politicians have voiced similar worries.

“Any time you have another layer of regulation on one of our resources 

— Lake Michigan — I mean, who knows in what way, shape or form 

that resource will benefit the state of Wisconsin in the future,” state 

Sen. Duey Stroebel, a Saukville Republican whose district fronts part 

of the proposed sanctuary, said in an interview last year. “And having 

another layer, especially a federal layer, of regulation on it could be 

problematic.”

Terry Katsma, a Republican member of the state Assembly from 

Oostburg, pointed to existing state regulations related to Lake 

Michigan and questioned the need for more oversight.

“I think our state historical society and the state government seem to 

be doing an adequate job of protecting the shipwrecks,” Katsma said.

Downtown Alpena, Michigan, home of the Thunder Bay National Marine Sanctuary. (Photo: Courtesy of Alpena Area Chamber of Commerce)

In Lake Huron, a precedent

In many ways, NOAA has been here before.

The last time the federal agency — an arm of the U.S. Department of Commerce — declared a national marine sanctuary was in 2000. Back then, 

officials wanted to overlay shipwreck protections across a swath of Lake Huron off the coast of northeastern Michigan.

Some residents of the Wolverine State weren’t having it, though. Voters in Alpena, the tiny coastal city that would serve as the sanctuary’s landward 

headquarters, cast referendum ballots in 1997 overwhelmingly opposing the proposal. Shortly afterward, and taking their cue from voters, members of 

Alpena’s city council also voiced opposition.

1 Month Freest

SUBSCRIBE TODAY

(HTTP://OFFERS.GREENBAYPRESSGAZETTE.COM/SPECIALOFFER?

GPS-

SOURCE=BENBFEB&UTM_MEDIUM=NANOBAR&UTM_SOURCE=BOUNCE-

EXCHANGE&UTM_CAMPAIGN=WELOVE2018)

Page 5 of 9Lake Michigan National Marine Sanctuary proposal sparks outcry

2/8/2018http://www.greenbaypressgazette.com/story/news/2018/01/31/trump-executive-order-noaa-wisconsin-lak...

81 of 92



Thunder Bay National Marine Sanctuary Divers visit the remains of the Nordmeer, a 471-foot German freighter that went down in November 1996.

The designation process continued largely unabated, though, and three years later the government established what’s been known since as the Thunder 

Bay National Marine Sanctuary.

Michiganders’ fears before 2000 largely mimicked the concerns Wisconsinites have more recently broached. NOAA back then fielded comments from 

people worried that a federal presence in the Great Lakes could threaten Michigan’s sovereignty and that a national freshwater preserve would 

needlessly duplicate services the state was already providing to protect state shipwrecks.

The agency responded then much the way it has today: with assurances that the Lake Huron sanctuary wouldn't threaten state control of its own land 

and water, that it wouldn't affect private landowners’ property rights and that it would bolster and amplify — not duplicate — the state’s existing efforts to 

preserve underwater heritage sites.

A tour boat in Alpena, Michigan, home of the Thunder Bay National Marine Sanctuary. (Photo: Courtesy of Alpena Area Chamber of Commerce)

Bill Speer, the editor of the Alpena News, said he suspects most of the people originally leery of the idea have since changed their opinions.

“I think if you talked to those people who were opposed to the sanctuary all those years ago,” Speer said, “I think of that group, more than half of them ... 

would say, ‘We were wrong and the sanctuary has been much better than we thought.’”

1 Month Freest

SUBSCRIBE TODAY

(HTTP://OFFERS.GREENBAYPRESSGAZETTE.COM/SPECIALOFFER?

GPS-

SOURCE=BENBFEB&UTM_MEDIUM=NANOBAR&UTM_SOURCE=BOUNCE-

EXCHANGE&UTM_CAMPAIGN=WELOVE2018)

Page 6 of 9Lake Michigan National Marine Sanctuary proposal sparks outcry

2/8/2018http://www.greenbaypressgazette.com/story/news/2018/01/31/trump-executive-order-noaa-wisconsin-lak...

82 of 92



Alpena's Visitor and Convention Bureau has since coined the phrase "Sanctuary of the Great Lakes" to describe the small city at the base of Lake 

Huron's Thunder Bay, and the region boasts nearly 100,000 visitors annually. 

were closing their doors. 

A view from the Great Lakes Maritime Heritage Trail in Alpena, Michigan, home of the Thunder Bay National Marine Sanctuary. (Photo: Courtesy of Alpena Area Chamber of 

Commerce)

"(Twenty years ago), our community was starting to transition, especially our downtown where we had some industry along the river, we were beginning 

to see some of that close down," said City Manager Greg Sundin. 

Today, the city of about 10,400 people routinely shows up on maps used by local and regional weather channels and has been featured by National 

Geographic and Discovery channels. 

The sanctuary even drew the attention of Robert Ballard, a professor of oceanography known for his discoveries of the wrecks of the Titanic in 1985 and 

the battleship Bismarck in 1989. Ballard visited the Thunder Bay National Marine Sanctuary and searched the bay for other wrecks.

In 2014, the sanctuary was expanded to cover 4,300 square miles of Thunder Bay, an area nicknamed "Shipwreck Alley," which is known for 

unpredictable weather and more than 200 shipwrecks. Nearly 100 of these shipwrecks have been found and are protected by NOAA's regulations. 

Speer said Alpena is a thriving city with a close relationship with NOAA and the sanctuary. In the summer, he sees multiple tour buses come into town, 

buses that not only stop at the Great Lakes Maritime Heritage Center but continue the tour with stops at wineries, local restaurants and the downtown 

shopping district before the tourists spend the night at a nearby resort. 

Local colleges and K-12 schools have implemented underwater robotics curriculum because of the dive tank installed at the Thunder Bay Marine 

Sanctuary headquarters. 

"For the school children of the region, it has just opened up all kinds of new and exciting interactive educational opportunities and that is neat to see, too," 

Speer said. 

Sundin, the city manager, believes NOAA is a community partner with a commitment to helping Alpena succeed, but he noted that the sanctuary would 

never have been successful without the eventual cooperation of the city, Alpena County and surrounding counties.

1 Month Freest

SUBSCRIBE TODAY

(HTTP://OFFERS.GREENBAYPRESSGAZETTE.COM/SPECIALOFFER?

GPS-

SOURCE=BENBFEB&UTM_MEDIUM=NANOBAR&UTM_SOURCE=BOUNCE-

EXCHANGE&UTM_CAMPAIGN=WELOVE2018)

Page 7 of 9Lake Michigan National Marine Sanctuary proposal sparks outcry

2/8/2018http://www.greenbaypressgazette.com/story/news/2018/01/31/trump-executive-order-noaa-wisconsin-lak...

83 of 92



(Photo: Gary C. Klein/USA TODAY 

NETWORK-Wisconsin)

Silhouette of The Alpena Light, also known as the Thunder Bay River Lighthouse or Alpena Breakwater Light in Alpena, Michigan, home of the Thunder Bay National 

Marine Sanctuary. (Photo: Courtesy of Alpena Area Chamber of Commerce)

"They (NOAA) invest heavily in the community, not just in terms of their facilities, but in terms of their commitment to be a part of the community," Sundin 

said. "You just never know what the benefits are (from working with NOAA), but I think you just have to look at it as, what can it offer to us and the 

community and how can we build on it? ... We are continuing to work on that."

It is those benefits that Wisconsin Maritime Museum Director Rolf Johnson is hoping to take advantage of. 

"It (the proposed sanctuary) will provide us with even more stories to tell, exhibits and educational opportunities," Johnson said. "It would give us the 

opportunity to strengthen the connection between people and culture."

Johnson said the sanctuary would also foster partnerships with other museums and institutions, not only along the lakeshore, but throughout the NOAA 

network.

Economic boon, or a boondoggle?

In Wisconsin, Sheboygan Mayor Mike Vandersteen said last year that a sanctuary could generate $10 million a year in new tourist spending across the 

three counties — based on an assumption that 70,000 people would show up to the sanctuary each year.

A few cities along the proposed Lake Michigan sanctuary, Vandersteen said, either already have the 

infrastructure to capitalize on tourists or were developing ideas to sell to visitors. He pointed, for instance, to 

Manitowoc’s Wisconsin Maritime Museum as one potential economic driver. Sheboygan had ideas for 

underwater robotics competitions to attract school students.

“As each of us develops our little niche that’s going to be part of this marine sanctuary,” he said, “that’s going, I 

think, to determine the real value of the tourism that might come to us.”

Sanctuary opponents, though, have critiqued such bright fiscal projections. They point to their own set of 

numbers to support claims a sanctuary would come with an economic whisper, not a boom.
Buy Photo

1 Month Freest

SUBSCRIBE TODAY

(HTTP://OFFERS.GREENBAYPRESSGAZETTE.COM/SPECIALOFFER?

GPS-

SOURCE=BENBFEB&UTM_MEDIUM=NANOBAR&UTM_SOURCE=BOUNCE-

EXCHANGE&UTM_CAMPAIGN=WELOVE2018)

Page 8 of 9Lake Michigan National Marine Sanctuary proposal sparks outcry

2/8/2018http://www.greenbaypressgazette.com/story/news/2018/01/31/trump-executive-order-noaa-wisconsin-lak...

84 of 92



The Wisconsin Maritime Museum (Photo: USA TODAY NETWORK-Wisconsin)

The University of Michigan’s Institute for Research on Labor, Employment, and the Economy teamed up with NOAA and several other groups in 2013 to 

compile a report on the economic impact the Thunder Bay National Marine Sanctuary had on northeast Michigan.

That report found less than 1 percent of business — at least among the companies reviewed — came from selling directly to the nearby Lake Huron 

sanctuary, while about 5 percent came from tourists visiting the sanctuary.

“For this sample at least,” the report said, business “does not appear to be driven by the (sanctuary), although the peak months of the tourist season 

certainly boost sales.”

Still, the report offered largely positive conclusions. It called the sanctuary an “asset” to Alpena, and said it could be a “significant contributor” to the 

region’s economic activity.

Sheboygan’s mayor said he remains confident the sanctuary will eventually pull through the federal overreach fears and Trump's executive order, which 

directed the Secretary of Commerce, “unless expressly required otherwise,” to “refrain from designating or expanding any National Marine Sanctuary.”

“I am very optimistic about this, and we're just going to have to be patient,” Vandersteen said. “Good things sometimes take time, and we're just going to 

have to wait until that works through that federal process.”

To learn more

For more about the marine sanctuary effort, visit https://sanctuaries.noaa.gov/wisconsin/ (https://sanctuaries.noaa.gov/wisconsin/).

Read or Share this story: http://htrne.ws/2Fwz8kg

1 Month Freest

SUBSCRIBE TODAY

(HTTP://OFFERS.GREENBAYPRESSGAZETTE.COM/SPECIALOFFER?

GPS-

SOURCE=BENBFEB&UTM_MEDIUM=NANOBAR&UTM_SOURCE=BOUNCE-

EXCHANGE&UTM_CAMPAIGN=WELOVE2018)

Page 9 of 9Lake Michigan National Marine Sanctuary proposal sparks outcry

2/8/2018http://www.greenbaypressgazette.com/story/news/2018/01/31/trump-executive-order-noaa-wisconsin-lak...

85 of 92



Menu » 2017 » Related Documents » Proposal Text » SB600: Bill Text

CORRECTED COPY

LRB-4115/1 

EHS&ZDW:kjf&amn

2017 - 2018 LEGISLATURE 

2017 SENATE BILL 600

November 30, 2017 - Introduced by Senators ROTH, CRAIG, FEYEN, KAPENGA, 

LASEE

and LEMAHIEU, cosponsored by Representatives STEINEKE, STAFSHOLT, 

ALLEN, 

E. BROOKS, R. BROOKS, FELZKOWSKI, HORLACHER, HUTTON, JAGLER, 

JARCHOW, 

KNODL, KREMER, KUGLITSCH, RODRIGUEZ and WEATHERSTON. Referred to 

Committee on Natural Resources and Energy. 

AN ACT to repeal 281.36 (3r) (a) 4. and 281.36 (3s); to amend 20.370 (9) 

(bm), 

281.36 (3b) (b), 281.36 (3m) (a), 281.36 (3n) (d), 281.36 (3r) (a) (intro.), 

281.36 

(3r) (e), 281.36 (4) (title), 281.36 (6) (a) (intro.) and 281.36 (9) (a) (intro.); 

and 

to create 281.12 (2), 281.36 (1) (ad), 281.36 (1) (e), 281.36 (3r) (f) and 

281.36 (4n) 

of the statutes; relating to: permitting and mitigation requirements for 

nonfederal and artificial wetlands and state assumption of the federal 

regulatory program governing the discharge of dredged or fill material into 

navigable waters.

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Bureau 

This bill exempts nonfederal and artificial wetlands from certain 

Department 

of Natural Resources wetland permitting requirements and, if the Environmental 

Protection Agency delegates to the state the authority to administer its own permit 

program for the discharge of dredge or fill material into navigable waters, 

authorizes 

DNR to assume that authority. 

Under current federal law, generally, a person must obtain a permit from 

the 

federal government for discharges to wetlands that are under the jurisdiction of the 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Page 1 of 6Wisconsin Legislature: SB600: Bill Text

2/8/2018https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/2017/related/proposals/sb600

86 of 92



federal government. Federal law requires an applicant to submit with a permit 

application a certification from the state that the proposed discharge will comply 

with state water quality standards or that the state has waived such certification. 

In this state, DNR grants this certification by issuing a state wetland permit. 

Under 

current law, DNR must issue wetland general permits for discharges of dredged or 

fill material into certain wetlands and may require a person to apply for and obtain 

a wetland individual permit if DNR determines that conditions specific to the site 

require additional restrictions on the discharge in order to provide reasonable 

assurance that no significant adverse impacts to wetland functional values will 

occur. 

The bill exempts wetlands that are not subject to federal jurisdiction 

(nonfederal wetlands) from state wetland permitting requirements. Generally 

speaking, only wetlands that are adjacent to navigable waters are subject to federal 

jurisdiction. The bill continues to require the mitigation of impacts from a 

discharge 

to a nonfederal wetland, which under current law is required before DNR may 

issue 

a wetland individual permit. 

The bill also excludes artificial wetlands from the definition of a wetland, 

thereby exempting these wetlands from the permitting and mitigation 

requirements 

that apply to the discharge of dredged or fill material into a wetland. Under the 

bill, 

an artificial wetland is a nonfederal wetland created by human modifications to the 

landscape or hydrology and for which DNR has no definitive evidence showing a 

prior 

wetland or stream history, but does not include a wetland created under a 

mitigation 

requirement. Under current rules promulgated by DNR, only certain artificial 

wetlands are exempt from the wetland permitting requirements and only if DNR 

determines that significant functional values are not present. 

Under current federal law, a state's governor may apply to the EPA 

requesting 

that the state be delegated the authority to administer its own individual and 

general permit program for the discharge of dredged or fill material into navigable 

waters, including federal wetlands, in place of the federal regulatory program. This 

bill authorizes DNR to submit such an application on behalf of and at the direction 

of the governor and authorizes DNR to assume that authority if the EPA delegates 

it to the state. 

The bill also requires DNR to expend all moneys received prior to the 

effective 

date of this bill for the in lieu fee subprogram no later than June 30, 2019, and, 

effective January 7, 2019, to expend moneys received for the in lieu fee subprogram 

within 24 months of being credited the moneys. The bill provides that, no later 

than 

the third month of each legislative session, DNR is required to provide a report to 

the 

Page 2 of 6Wisconsin Legislature: SB600: Bill Text

2/8/2018https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/2017/related/proposals/sb600

87 of 92



governor and the appropriate standing committees of the legislature explaining 

how 

the department expended the moneys and, if necessary, why the department failed 

to expend all of the moneys. Under current law, as part of the mitigation program, 

DNR may establish an in lieu fee subprogram, under which payments are made to 

DNR for the purposes of restoring, enhancing, creating, or preserving wetlands or 

other water resource features. 

For further information see the state fiscal estimate, which will be printed as 

an appendix to this bill. 

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do 

enact as follows: 

SECTION 1. 20.370 (9) (bm) of the statutes, as affected by 2017 Wisconsin 

Act 

59, is amended to read:

20.370 (9) (bm) Wetland restoration — fees; payments. From the general 

fund, 

all moneys received as surcharge fees under s. 281.36 (11), all moneys received as 

transfers to the in lieu fee subprogram as provided in s. 281.36 (3s) (h), 2015 stats., 

and all moneys received under the in lieu fee subprogram under s. 281.36 (3r) (e) 

for 

the restoration or creation of wetlands and for any other activities authorized 

under 

the in lieu fee subprogram. 

SECTION 2. 281.12 (2) of the statutes is created to read: 

281.12 (2) The department, on behalf of and at the direction of the 

governor, 

may submit an application to the federal environmental protection agency under 33 

USC 1344 (g) seeking the delegation of authority to this state to administer its own 

individual and general permit program for the discharge of dredged or fill material 

into the navigable waters of this state. If the federal environmental protection 

agency delegates this authority to this state, the department may assume that 

authority. 

SECTION 3. 281.36 (1) (ad) of the statutes is created to read: 

281.36 (1) (ad) “Artificial wetland” means a wetland created by human 

modifications to the landscape or hydrology and for which the department has no 

definitive evidence showing a prior wetland or stream history. “Artificial wetland” 

does not include a wetland that is subject to federal jurisdiction under 33 USC 1344

or a wetland created as a result of the mitigation program under sub. (3r). 

SECTION 4. 281.36 (1) (e) of the statutes is created to read: 

281.36 (1) (e) “Wetland” has the meaning given in s. 23.32 (1) but does not 

include an artificial wetland. 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

1

2

3

4

5

Page 3 of 6Wisconsin Legislature: SB600: Bill Text

2/8/2018https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/2017/related/proposals/sb600

88 of 92



SECTION 5. 281.36 (3b) (b) of the statutes, as affected by 2017 Wisconsin 

Act 58, 

is amended to read: 

281.36 (3b) (b) No person may discharge dredged material or fill material 

into 

a wetland unless the discharge is authorized by a wetland general permit or 

individual permit issued by the department under this section or the discharge is 

exempt under sub. (4) or, (4m) (a) , or (4n). No person may violate any condition 

contained in a wetland general or individual permit issued by the department 

under 

this section. The department may not issue a wetland general or individual permit 

under this section unless it determines that the discharge authorized pursuant to 

the 

wetland general or individual permit will comply with all applicable water quality 

standards. 

SECTION 6. 281.36 (3m) (a) of the statutes, as affected by 2017 Wisconsin 

Act 

58, is amended to read:

281.36 (3m) (a) When permit required. Any person wishing to proceed with 

a 

discharge into any wetland shall submit an application for a wetland individual 

permit under this subsection unless the discharge has been authorized under a 

wetland general permit as provided in sub. (3g) or is exempt under sub. (4) or, (4m) 

(a), or (4n). Before submitting the application, the department shall hold a meeting 

with the applicant to discuss the details of the proposed discharge and the 

requirements for submitting the application and for delineating the wetland. An 

applicant may include in the application a request for a public informational 

hearing. 

The application shall be accompanied by the applicable fee specified in sub. (11) or 

(12) (a). 

SECTION 7. 281.36 (3n) (d) of the statutes is amended to read: 

281.36 (3n) (d) Mitigation required. The department shall require 

mitigation 

under the program established under sub. (3r) for wetland individual permits it 

issues under this subsection and for any discharge exempt from permitting 

requirements under sub. (4n). This subsection does not entitle an applicant to a 

wetland individual permit or any other approval in exchange for conducting 

mitigation. 

SECTION 8. 281.36 (3r) (a) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read: 

281.36 (3r) (a) (intro.) The department shall establish a mitigation 

program 

that applies only to the issuance of wetland individual permits and to discharges 

that 

are exempt from permitting requirements under sub. (4n) and that allows 

mitigation 

to be accomplished by any of the following methods: 

SECTION 9. 281.36 (3r) (a) 4. of the statutes is repealed. 

SECTION 10. 281.36 (3r) (e) of the statutes is amended to read: 

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

Page 4 of 6Wisconsin Legislature: SB600: Bill Text

2/8/2018https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/2017/related/proposals/sb600

89 of 92



281.36 (3r) (e) As part of the mitigation program established under par. 

(a), the 

department may establish an in lieu fee subprogram, under which payments are 

made to the department or another entity for the purposes of restoring, enhancing, 

creating, or preserving wetlands or other water resource features. The subprogram 

must be approved by the U.S. army corps of engineers. The department shall 

establish requirements for calculating the in lieu fee payments. Under the in lieu 

fee subprogram, the wetlands that benefit from the subprogram shall be open to 

the 

public for hunting, fishing, trapping, cross-country skiing, or hiking or any 

combination thereof, but the department may establish reasonable restrictions on 

the use of the land by the public in order to protect public safety or to protect a 

unique 

plant or animal community. The subprogram shall be consistent with federal 

regulations and the department may not impose requirements or conditions under 

the subprogram that exceed the requirements and conditions established by the 

U.S. 

army corps of engineers under 33 CFR 332.

SECTION 11. 281.36 (3r) (f) of the statutes is created to read: 

281.36 (3r) (f) The department shall expend moneys received for the in lieu 

fee 

subprogram under par. (e) within 24 months of being credited the moneys. No later 

than the 3rd month of each legislative session, the department shall provide to the 

governor and the appropriate standing committees of the legislature a report 

explaining how the department expended the moneys and, if necessary, why the 

department failed to expend all of the moneys. 

SECTION 12. 281.36 (3s) of the statutes is repealed. 

SECTION 13. 281.36 (4) (title) of the statutes is amended to read: 

281.36 (4) (title) EXEMPTIONS ; CERTAIN ACTIVITIES.

SECTION 14. 281.36 (4n) of the statutes is created to read: 

281.36 (4n) EXEMPTION; NONFEDERAL WETLANDS. The permitting 

requirement 

under sub. (3b) does not apply to any discharge into a nonfederal wetland. 

SECTION 15. 281.36 (6) (a) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read: 

281.36 (6) (a) (intro.) The department shall promulgate rules to interpret 

and 

implement the provisions under subs. (4), (4n), and (5). In promulgating these 

rules, 

the department shall do all of the following: 

SECTION 16. 281.36 (9) (a) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read: 

281.36 (9) (a) (intro.) For purposes of determining whether to issue a wetland 

individual permit, whether authorization to proceed as authorized under a wetland 

general permit is appropriate, or whether an exemption under sub. (4) or (4n) is 

appropriate, and for purposes of enforcing this section, any employee or other 

representative of the department, upon presenting his or her credentials, may do 

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

1

2

3

4

5

Page 5 of 6Wisconsin Legislature: SB600: Bill Text

2/8/2018https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/2017/related/proposals/sb600

90 of 92



any 

of the following: 

SECTION 17. Nonstatutory provisions.

(1) Notwithstanding section 281.36 (3r) (f) of the statutes, no later than 

June 

30, 2019, the department of natural resources shall expend all moneys received 

prior 

to the effective date of this subsection for the in lieu fee subprogram under section 

281.36 (3r) (e) of the statutes. 

SECTION 18. Effective dates. This act takes effect on the day after 

publication, 

except as follows: 

(1) The treatment of section 281.36 (3r) (f) of the statutes takes effect on 

January 7, 2019. 

(END) 

Menu » 2017 » Related Documents » Proposal Text » SB600: Bill Text

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

Page 6 of 6Wisconsin Legislature: SB600: Bill Text

2/8/2018https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/2017/related/proposals/sb600

91 of 92



  

 County of Door 

 LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE 
 County Government Center    421 Nebraska Street 

Sturgeon Bay, WI  54235 

Susan Kohout, Chair 

Helen Bacon 

Roy Englebert 

David Enigl 

Steve Sohns 
February 8, 2018 
 
The Honorable Robert Cowles 
Wisconsin State Senator 
PO Box 7882   State Capitol 
Madison, WI  53707-7882 

The Honorable Joel Kitchens 
Wisconsin State Representative 
PO Box 8952   State Capital 
Madison, WI  53708-8952 

 

 
Re: Door County Opposition to SB600/AB547 
 
Dear Senator Cowles and Representative Kitchens:  
 
This letter is to express the Door County Legislative Committee’s opposition to legislation that removes Wisconsin DNR’s permit 
authority for the protection of hundreds of thousands of acres of non-federally protected wetlands in cities and villages. In 2001 the 
Wisconsin Legislature, with overwhelming support from environmentalists, conservationists and most Wisconsin citizens, unanimously 
enacted legislation requiring DNR review and permitting before non-federally protected wetlands could be filled. Removing that 
protection would be detrimental to Door County’s landscape and be seen both in surface and groundwater. 
 
Karst topography is a defining feature of the Door Peninsula, where water moves very quickly through shallow, gravelly soils above 
porous limestone into groundwater supplies.  Wetlands are vital as they serve to retain and provide storage for stormwater thereby 
reducing peak flows, reducing floods, minimizing harm to downstream areas, and filtering pollutants from surface and groundwater.  
Preserving wetlands prevents needless expenses for flood and stormwater control projects, especially in cities where pavement and 
other features contribute to increased stormwater amounts and velocity.  These wetland functional values also provide economic 
benefits to downstream property owners and taxpayers.  Removal of the DNR’s permit authority and loss of mitigation removes 
protection from flood events and water quality protections.  
 
Additionally, Door County is concerned that the amended bill promotes sprawl by removing protection not just from state jurisdictional 
wetlands in every city and village, but also areas near those municipalities, all sewerage service areas, and in nearly 300 town 
sanitary districts spread all across Wisconsin. As communities grow, those wetland permit exemptions areas will grow. It also removes 
local authority to protect isolated wetlands through zoning. These provisions will result in a net loss of untold amounts of wetlands 
across Wisconsin’s urban and rural settings, undermining community‐based efforts to address flooding and poor water quality 
challenges. 
 
This proposed legislation will have serious repercussions to Door County’s ecologically significant landscape and even more 
concerning implications to citizen’s ground water quality and for these reasons Door County is opposed to this legislation. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
      
Susan Kohout, Chair  Helen Bacon  Roy Englebert 
Door County Board Supervisor  Door County Board Supervisor  Door County Board Supervisor 
District 6  District 7  District 3 
 
 
     
David Enigl  Steve Sohns   
Door County Board Supervisor  Door County Board Supervisor   
District 17  District 18 

92 of 92


	2018-02-13 Legislative Committee Agenda
	2018-01-09 Legislative Committee Minutes
	Resolution 2018-___ Supporting Constitutional Amendment to allow limits on compaign contributions
	Original Resolution 2018-___ Supporting Constitutional Amendment to allow limits on compaign contributions
	T of Clay Banks - Resolution Supporting a Constitutional Amendment
	Chairman Lipscomb's Letter
	Draft Legislation LRB-5135(1)
	Memo Regarding Proposed Legislation
	Milwaukee County Board Resolution Opposing Legislation
	Resolution 2-2018 To urge creation of a nonpartisan procedure for the preparation of legislative and congressional redistricting plans
	NOAA
	SB600
	Leg Ltr Opposition to SB600_AB547 - Wetlands



